# Guide to the Religious Education Association Records - Addendum A

RG 74A



Boardman W. Kathan

2007

409 Prospect Street New Haven, CT 06511 (203) 432-5301 divinity.library@yale.edu http://web.library.yale.edu/divinity/special-collections

# **Table of Contents**

Collection Overview	
Requesting Instructions	. 3
Administrative Information	. 3
Immediate Source of Acquisition	. 3
Conditions Governing Access	
Preferred Citation	
Related Materials	
Biographical / Historical	
Scope and Contents	. 5
Arrangement	. 7
Collection Contents	. 8
Series I: Organizational and Policy Records, 1952-2003	
Series II: Board and Committee Records, 1976-2002	10
Series III: Secretarial Files, 1970-2002	
Series IV: Meetings, 1972-2003	
Series V: Regional Work, 1988-1989, undated	17
Series VI: Publications, 1971-2003, undated	
Series VII: Research, 1979-1989	19
Series VIII: Financial and Promotional Records, 1981-2001	20
Series IX: Memberships, 2001	21
Series X: Photographs, 1970-2000, undated	22
Selected Search Terms	24

### **Collection Overview**

REPOSITORY:	Yale Divinity Library 409 Prospect Street New Haven, CT 06511 (203) 432-5301 divinity.library@yale.edu http://web.library.yale.edu/divinity/special-collections
CALL NUMBER:	RG 74A
CREATOR:	Religious Education Association
TITLE:	Religious Education Association Records - Addendum A
DATES:	1952-2003
PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION:	14 linear feet (28 boxes)
LANGUAGE:	English
SUMMARY:	The papers document the history of the REA primarily from 1982 to 2003, when the organization merged with Association of Professors and Researchers in Religious Education (APRRE). They are an addition to Record Group No. 74, which covers the years primarily from the founding of the organization in 1903 to 1982. There is some overlap and duplication between these two collections, since it includes the complete newsletter, REACH, from its beginning in 1971, plus publications from the 75th anniversary in 1978 and some photographs from the earlier period.
ONLINE FINDING AID:	To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: <u>https://</u> hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/divinity.074a

### **Requesting Instructions**

To request items from this collection for use on site, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at <u>https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/divinity.074a</u>.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

- b. box
- f. folder

### Administrative Information

### **Immediate Source of Acquisition**

Deposited by the Religious Education Association

### **Conditions Governing Access**

The materials are open for research.

# **Preferred Citation**

Religious Education Association Records - Addendum A (RG 74A), Special Collections, Yale Divinity Library.

# **Related Materials**

This collection completes and supplements <u>Record Group No. 74</u>, which covers the development of the REA from 1903 to 1982 (although the call to the founding convention was issued in 1902). It also complements <u>Record Group No. 154</u>, the archives of the Association of Professors and Researchers in Religious Education, and <u>Record Group No. 262</u>, the archives of the National Council on Religion and Public Education, which was founded by the REA in 1971. Other record groups at the Yale Divinity School library complement the REA archives, especially the papers of leaders of the movement in the first half of the 20th century: George Albert Coe (RG 36); Frank Knight Sanders (RG 122); Hugh Hartshorne (RG 30); and those of Luther Weigle (MS 1042), which are in the Sterling Library at Yale. Other leaders whose papers are at YDS are Paul Vieth (RG 59) and Randolph Crump Miller (RG 173).

# **Biographical** / Historical

During this period of time the Religious Education Association, chartered in 1903 in Illinois, continued to publish its journal, *Religious Education*, and its newsletter, *REACH*, to hold conventions and other conferences in cities of the U.S. and Canada, granted awards to outstanding leaders, encouraged local and regional chapters, and sponsored a research project on Faith Development in the Adult Life Cycle.

By 1999 the journal became known as "An Interfaith Journal of Spirituality, Growth and Transformation." John Westerhoff of the Duke University Divinity School served as the Editor-in-Chief for ten years, 1978-1987, and was followed by Rabbi Jack Spiro of Virginia Commonwealth University in 1988 and by Hanan Alexander of the University of Judaism, Los Angeles, in 1993. At the beginning of the 21st century the position was filled by Theodore Brelsford of Candler School of Theology, Emory University in Atlanta, Georgia. Randolph Crump Miller of Yale Divinity School continued as managing editor until the late 1990s when the position was contracted out, along with that of copy editor. The newsletter was expanded to a quarterly and was edited by the executive staff until 1997, when it too was contracted out. By 2000 the newsletter took electronic form. However, in the 100th anniversary year, 2003, a special 26-page edition was published with articles from the REA's past, *In Retrospect*, and its future, *In Prospect*. This special issue ended with a two-page listing of all the leaders of the organization since 1903.

Conventions and conferences were held in a number of places: Anaheim, California (1983); Washington, DC (1986); Toronto, Ontario (1987); Boulder, Colorado (1990); Indianapolis, Indiana (1992); Chicago, Illinois (1994); New Orleans, Louisiana (1996); Orlando, Florida (1998); Atlanta, Georgia (2000); and the 100th anniversary celebration in Chicago in 2003. These meetings were generally planned in tandem with the Association of Professors and Researchers in Religious Education or other groups. The 1986 meeting was held in conjunction with the Society for the Scientific Study of Religion and the Religious Research Association. Most noteworthy during this period was a series of Tri-Lateral Conferences in the years 1991-1994, which brought together a number of Christian, Jewish and Muslim educators. Originally called "Educational Conferences on Religious Differences," they were funded by a \$50,000 grant from the Lilly Endowment. Eight conferences were held in various places in the U.S. and Canada: Houston, Texas (1991); Claremont and Los Angeles, California (1992); Stony Point, NY (1993); Oklahoma City (1993); Windsor, Ontario (1994); Villanova, Pennsylvania (1994); Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania (1994); and a conference for women at Stony Point, NY, in 1994.

The REA continued to present its most prestigious award in memory of William Rainey Harper, who was instrumental in calling the founding convention in 1903. Previous recipients of the Harper Award were Marshall McLuhan, Elie Wiesel, Margaret Mead, Randolph C. Miller, and Fr. Johannes Hofinger. In 1983 it was presented to Paulo and Elza Freire of Brazil; in 1992 to John Hull of Great Britain; in 1994 to Martin Marty of the University of Chicago; and in 2003 to Gabriel Moran and Maria Harris. In addition, after the

death of Herman Wornom, its long-time General Secretary, the Wornom Award was instituted in order to honor institutions of great service to the religious education profession. In 1992 it was given to Craig Dykstra and the Lilly endowment, and in 1994 to Will Kennedy and the Union Theological Seminary of New York City.

Metropolitan and regional chapters were not as successful. One chapter in Houston, Texas, held meetings and sponsored a regional conference. Activity was also reported in Dubuque, Iowa, Honolulu, and even Korea. When Sherry Blumberg was REA President, a clergy institute was co-sponsored in Dayton, Ohio, and a regional gathering in Marblehead, Massachusetts. The REA co-sponsored a program at Wainwright House in Rye, NY, and a conference at Spertus College in Chicago in 1988. A Study Tour to Israel, Rome, Geneva and Milan was conducted on November 16-30, 1985, under the leadership of Kenneth Stokes. Delegates were sent to the annual meetings of the National Council on Religion and Public Education, which had been organized by the REA in 1971, and to the Centennial Parliament of World Religions in Chicago in 1993.

The major research project in this period was on Faith Development in the Adult Life Cycle, directed by Kenneth Stokes. It began in 1979 and sponsored a national symposium, 23 regional workshops, a national conference in Canada, and in-depth research program in two "Modules," a "Seminar-at-Sea," and saw the publication of two books. The project had become a separate organization by 1988 with the name, Adult Faith Resources.

There were some important changes in the REA. First, there was a decline in the total membership and library subscriptions from a combined high of 5,000 in the 1960s and 1970s. Secondly, there was a change from a full-time General or Executive Secretary to a part-time one. Following the full-time service of Boardman Kathan from 1970 to 1982, Randolph C. Miller was the part-time executive from 1982 to 1985, followed by Dorothy Savage of the National Council of Churches from 1985 to 1987. The last Executive Secretary was Donald Russo, a teacher at Xaverian High School in Brooklyn, from 1987 to 1991. Subsequently, the work was carried on by Executive Administrators: Barbara Ryan, to 1997; Ronald Cram, Columbia Theological Seminary in Decatur, Georgia, 1997-1998; two graduate students at Emory University, Robin Ficklin-Alred, 1998-1999, and Kimberleigh Buchanan, 1999-2001. The last Executive Administrator was Eugenia Freiburger, Union Theological Seminary in Richmond, Virginia, for a brief time in 2001. Following this, leadership was provided by the REA Presidents, Ronald Cram of Columbia Theological Seminary and Anne Wimberly of the Interdenominational Theological Center in Atlanta. Third, the location of the REA office was changed. Since 1973 the office had been located on the campus of Yale Divinity School in New Haven, Connecticut. However, by 1997 Yale had decided that it would no longer rent space to outside organizations so that it could prepare for a major renovation. The office was moved to Columbia Theological Seminary in Decatur, Georgia, in 1997, and then the following year space was rented in the Oakhurst Baptist Church in Decatur and in 1999 in the Virginia-Highland Baptist Church in Atlanta. In 2001 it was moved to Richmond, Virginia, but this was short-lived. Subsequently, it was located in the homes and offices of the REA Presidents.

A fourth change was the publication of the journal as a quarterly rather than as a bimonthly, starting in 1983. After many years with the Oberlin Printing Co. in Ohio, the work was done by the William C. Brown Co. in Iowa, then by Scholars Press in Georgia and finally by Taylor and Francis in Philadelphia. Finally, the executives of the Association of Professors and Researchers in Religious Education took over more of the leadership of the REA, especially under Charles Melchert and Randy Litchfield. The two organizations had coordinated their meetings since the early 1970s, the journal had become a joint venture by 1980, and a committee was appointed to explore the merger of the two groups by the start of the 21st century. Together, the two organizations celebrated the 100th anniversary of the REA with a three-day conference in Chicago in November on the theme, "Embracing the Past, Envisioning the Future: Religious Education in an Age of Transition."

### Scope and Contents

This addendum to the archives of the Religious Education Association consist of over 300 files in 28 archival boxes and about 14 linear feet of material dating primarily from 1982 to 2003, although there are some files from earlier decades, including a complete collection of the newsletter, *REACH*, from its

beginning in 1971, the material commissioned to celebrate the 75th anniversary of the organization in 1978, and a number of photos. This collection completes and supplements <u>Record Group No. 74</u>, which covers the development of the REA from 1903 to 1982 (although the call to the founding convention was issued in 1902). It is very appropriate that the REA archives are stored at Yale, since the office was located on the YDS campus from 1973 to 1997. In addition, Randolph C. Miller, Yale Ph.D. 1936 and YDS professor, was the editor of the journal for twenty years, 1958 to 1977, served as interim executive secretary for over two years, and was the managing editor of the journal for many years. Yale graduates who were leaders of the REA in the last decades of the 20th century were Boardman Kathan, YDS '56; General Secretary from 1970 to 1982, Kenneth Stokes, YDS '54; John Peatling, YDS '52 and '53; Sara Little, PhD '58; and William B. Kennedy, PhD '57. An executive of the Association of Professors and Researchers in Religious Education (APRRE) in the 1990s was Charles Melchert, Yale PhD '68.

Series I, Organizational and Policy Records, contains a diverse collection of files and documents relating to the structure, tax-exempt status, membership, staff and operations. Of particular interest are several studies of the organizations and attempts at restructuring. This series concludes with the process leading to merger with the Association of Professors and Researchers in Religious Education (APRRE).

Series II, Board and Committees, deals with the minutes and mailings of the Board of Directors and the various committees, especially the Executive Committee (sometimes called the "Steering Committee" in the late 1990s) and the Editorial Committee. One can see a continued interest in a review of the purpose and goals of the organization, and its vision for the future.

Series III, Secretarial Files, includes not only the records and correspondence of the staff, but also those of Presidents and Editors, especially Mary Elizabeth Moore, Hanan Alexander and Ronald Cram.

Series IV, Meetings, is devoted to the conventions and conferences of the REA from 1983 to the 100th anniversary celebration in 2003. Most noteworthy were the Tri-Lateral Conferences held from 1991 to 1994. Some of the papers are included in the files, but they were never published, because not enough permissions were received from the leaders.

Series V, Regional Work, is focused on the metropolitan and regional chapters, which were encouraged by the REA. Included here is the conference sponsored by the chapter in Houston, Texas.

Series VI, Publications, contains a complete set of the newsletter, *REACH*, and the publications which grew out of the 75th anniversary of the REA in 1978: the anthology, *Who Are We? The Quest for a Religious Education*, edited by John Westerhoff and published by the Religious Education Press in 1978; the festschrift for Herman Wornom, *Pioneers of Religious Education in the 20th Century*, edited by Boardman Kathan as a special issue of the journal in 1978; and *A History of the Religious Education Association* by Stephen Schmidt and published by Religious Education Press in 1983. Also included is an anthology of articles from the journal, *Religious Education in Adulthood*, edited by John L. Elias. The journal, *Religious Education*, is cataloged in the main library holdings of the Divinity School.

Series VII, Research, contains the files and reports of the major research project during this period, Faith Development in the Adult Life Cycle, directed by Kenneth Stokes. There is a copy of the book, *Faith Development in the Adult Life Cycle*, edited by Stokes and published by W.H. Sadlier in 1982. There is also a copy of the report by the Princeton Religion Research Center, "Faith Development and Your Ministry," reports of the Module I and Module II research, and a copy of the book, Faith is a Verb: Dynamics of Adult *Faith Development*, written by Stokes and published by Twenty-Third Publications in 1989. Also included is a copy of Volumes I and II of the *Annual Review of Research*, published by the Character Research Press, Schenectady. NY. and edited by John Peatling, who served as chairman of the Research Committee.

Series VIII, Financial and Promotional Records includes financial reports, promotional work and some funding sources. Most important for the future of the REA was the establishment of an Endowment Fund in the early 1990s, which was helped considerably by a bequest from the estate of Herman Wornom after he died in 1992 and a bequest from Ruth Hagedorn, a long-time supporter of the REA through her friendship with an earlier leader, F. Ernest Johnson.

Series IX, Memberships, contains several membership lists, including the 2001 one, filed alphabetically and by country and zip code.

Series X, Photographs, consists of files in alphabetical order of REA staff, officers, members, and leaders at the numerous conventions, as well as photos from conventions in the 1970s and a large collection of color photos of later conferences and meetings.

### Arrangement

I. Organization and Policy Records II. Board and Committee Records III. Secretarial Files IV. Meetings V. Regional Work VI. Publications VII. Research VIII. Financial and Promotional Records IX. Memberships X. Photographs

# Collection Contents Series I: Organizational and Policy Records, 1952-2003

b. 1, f. 1	Archives Project	undated
b. 1, f. 2	Articles on Incorporation, Constitution, By Laws	undated
b. 1, f. 3	IRS letters of tax-exempt status	1952-1953
b. 1, f. 4	IRS correspondence	undated
b. 1, f. 5	Annual registration, Illinois	1953-1980
b. 1, f. 6	Annual registration, Illinois, Georgia	1981-1998
b. 1, f. 7	Tax exemption, Connecticut, Illinois, Iowa, New York	undated
b. 1, f. 8	QWS study	1977
b. 1, f. 9	Restructuring Committee	1984
b. 1, f. 10	Restructuring Committee	undated
b. 1, f. 11	J. Martin Bailey study	1985
b. 1, f. 12	Task force on Governance	1995
b. 1, f. 13	Membership survey	1984-1985
b. 1, f. 14	Membership survey	1999
b. 1, f. 15	Interfaith Database	1988-1989
b. 2, f. 16	Office relocation	1973, 1997
b. 2, f. 17	Office space	1998, 1999
b. 2, f. 18	Executive Secretary search	1982-1985
b. 2, f. 19	Evaluation, Executive Secretary	1991
b. 2, f. 20	Editor-in-Chief search	1991-1992
b. 2, f. 21	Personnel agreements, policy	undated
b. 2, f. 22	Staff contracts	undated
b. 2, f. 23	Staff evaluations	undated
b. 2, f. 24	Office form letters	undated
b. 2, f. 25	Orientation, Board of Directors	undated
b. 2, f. 26	Operating Manual, Board of Directors	1993-1995
b. 2, f. 27	Membership in other organizations	undated
b. 2, f. 28	Gulf War letter	1991

b. 2, f. 29	Association of Professors and Researchers in Religious Education (APRRE) / Religious Education Association (REA) merger	2002-2003
b. 2, f. 30	Association of Professors and Researchers in Religious Education (APRRE) / Religious Education Association (REA) merger	undated
b. 2, f. 31	Merger response, James Michael Lee	undated

### Series II: Board and Committee Records, 1976-2002

В	oard of Directors	
b. 3, f. 32	1982 November	1982 November
b. 3, f. 33	1983 June 14	1983 June 14
b. 3, f. 34	1983 November 20	1983 November 20
b. 3, f. 35	1984 November 26	1984 November 26
b. 3, f. 36-37	1985 May 24	1985 May 24
b. 3, f. 38	1985 October 9	1985 October 9
b. 3, f. 39	1986 May 13	1986 May 13
b. 3, f. 40	1986 November 14	1986 November 14
b. 3, f. 41	1987 May 15	1987 May 15
b. 3, f. 42	1987 November 1	1987 November 1
b. 3, f. 43	1988 May 13	1988 May 13
b. 3, f. 44	1988 October 28	1988 October 28
b. 3, f. 45	1989 May 11-12	1989 May 11-12
b. 3, f. 46	1989 October 29	1989 October 29
b. 3, f. 47	Mailing	1990 April 29-30
b. 3, f. 48	1991 May 24	1991 May 24
b. 3, f. 49	1991 November 3-4	1991 November 3-4
b. 3, f. 50	1992 March 29-30	1992 March 29-30
b. 3, f. 51	Mailing	1992 July 31
b. 3, f. 52	1992 November 8	1992 November 8
b. 4, f. 53	1993 May 2-3	1993 May 2-3
b. 4, f. 54	1993 December 12	1993 December 12
b. 4, f. 55	Mailing	1994 February 4
b. 4, f. 56	1994 April 23-25	1994 April 23-25

#### Board of Directors (continued)

b. 4, f. 57	1994 November 6	1994 November 6
b. 4, f. 58	1995 April 11	1995 April 11
b. 4, f. 59	Mailing	1995 August 16
b. 4, f. 60	1995 November 2	1995 November 2
b. 4, f. 61	1996 April 28-29	1996 April 28-29
b. 4, f. 62	1996 November 6	1996 November 6
b. 4, f. 63	1997 May 4-5	1997 May 4-5
b. 4, f. 64b. 5, f. 65	1998 May 3-5	1998 May 3-5
b. 5, f. 66	1998 November 22-24	1998 November 22-24
b. 5, f. 67-68	1999 May 2-4	1999 May 2-4
b. 5, f. 69	1999 October 17	1999 October 17
b. 5, f. 70	Mailing	1999 October 17
b. 5, f. 71	Mailing	2000 May 7-9
b. 5, f. 72-73	2000 May 7-9	2000 May 7-9
b. 5, f. 74	2000 November 3	2000 November 3
b. 5, f. 75	Mailing	2001 March 16-18
b. 5, f. 76-77	2001 March 16-18	2001 March 16-18
b. 5, f. 78	2002 October 31	2002 October 31
Exe	cutive Committee	
b. 6, f. 79	1976-1980	1976-1980
b. 6, f. 80	1982-1983	1982-1983
b. 6, f. 81	1984 June 21	1984 June 21
b. 6, f. 82	1986	1986
b. 6, f. 83	1987 February 20	1987 February 20
b. 6, f. 84	1988 September 22	1988 September 22

#### Executive Committee (continued)

b. 6, f. 85	1989	1989
b. 6, f. 86-87	1990	1990
b. 6, f. 88	1991	1991
b. 6, f. 89	1992	1992
b. 6, f. 90	1993	1993
b. 6, f. 91	1994	1994
b. 6, f. 92	1995	1995
b. 6, f. 93	1996	1996
b. <b>7</b> , f. <b>9</b> 4	1998	1998
b. 7, f. 95	1999 January-June	1999 January- June
b. <b>7,</b> f. <b>96</b>	1999 July-December	1999 July- December
b. <b>7</b> , f. <b>97</b>	2000	2000
b. <b>7</b> , f. <b>98</b>	2001	2001
E	ditorial Committee	
b. 7, f. 99-100	1977	1977
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
b. 7, f. 101-102	1979	1979
b. 7, f. 101-102	1979	1979
b. 7, f. 101-102 b. 7, f. 103	1979 1980-1982	1979 1980-1982
b. 7, f. 101-102 b. 7, f. 103 b. 7, f. 104	1979 1980-1982 1983	1979 1980-1982 1983
b. 7, f. 101-102 b. 7, f. 103 b. 7, f. 104 b. 7, f. 105	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984	1979 1980-1982 1983 1984
b. 7, f. 101-102 b. 7, f. 103 b. 7, f. 104 b. 7, f. 105 b. 8, f. 106	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985
b. 7, f. 101-102 b. 7, f. 103 b. 7, f. 104 b. 7, f. 105 b. 8, f. 106 b. 8, f. 107	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985   1989-1992	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985   1989-1992
b. 7, f. 101-102 b. 7, f. 103 b. 7, f. 104 b. 7, f. 105 b. 8, f. 106 b. 8, f. 107 b. 8, f. 108 b. 8, f. 109	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985   1989-1992   1993	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985   1989-1992   1993
b. 7, f. 101-102 b. 7, f. 103 b. 7, f. 104 b. 7, f. 105 b. 8, f. 106 b. 8, f. 107 b. 8, f. 108 b. 8, f. 109	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985   1989-1992   1993   1995	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985   1989-1992   1993
b. 7, f. 101-102 b. 7, f. 103 b. 7, f. 104 b. 7, f. 105 b. 8, f. 106 b. 8, f. 107 b. 8, f. 108 b. 8, f. 109 E	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985   1989-1992   1993   1995   ditor Search Committee	19791980-19821983198419851989-199219931995
b. 7, f. 101-102 b. 7, f. 103 b. 7, f. 104 b. 7, f. 105 b. 8, f. 106 b. 8, f. 107 b. 8, f. 108 b. 8, f. 109 E b. 8, f. 110-111 b. 8, f. 112	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985   1989-1992   1993   1995   Iditor Search Committee   1990-1991	19791980-19821983198419851989-199219931995
b. 7, f. 101-102 b. 7, f. 103 b. 7, f. 104 b. 7, f. 105 b. 8, f. 106 b. 8, f. 107 b. 8, f. 108 b. 8, f. 109 E b. 8, f. 110-111 b. 8, f. 112	1979   1980-1982   1983   1984   1985   1989-1992   1993   1995   Idut   Search Committee   1990-1991   Undated	19791980-19821983198419851989-199219931995

b. 8, f. 115	Finance Committee	undated
b. 8, f. 116	Research Committee	undated
b. 9, f. 117-118	Program Committee	undated
	Nominating Committee	
b. 9, f. 119	1985-1989	1985-1989
b. 9, f. 120	1989-1995	1989-1995
b. 9, f. 121	1993-1995	1993-1995
b. 9, f. 122	1997-1998	1997-1998
b. 9, f. 123	1999	1999
b. 9, f. 124	Video Task Force	undated
b. 9, f. 125	Executive Administrator Search Committee	1998

# Series III: Secretarial Files, 1970-2002

b. 10, f. 126	Herman Wornom (1992 Memorial)	1992
b. 10, f. 127	Boardman Kathan	1970-1982
b. 10, f. 128	Boardman Kathan	1970-1982
b. 10, f. 129	Testimonial Dinner for Boardman Kathan	1983
b. 10, f. 130	Randolph C. Miller	1982-1985
b. 10, f. 131	Sara Little	undated
b. 10, f. 132	Dorothy Savage	1985-1987
b. 10, f. 133	Donald Russo	1987-1991
b. 10, f. 134-137	Barbara Ryan	1986-1997
b. 11, f. 138-139	Mary Elizabeth Moore, President	1989-1993
b. 11, f. 140	Hanan Alexander, Editor-in-Chief	1993-2000
b. 11, f. 141-143	Ronald Cram	1997-1998, 2000-2002
b. 11, f. 144	Noel Shuell, President	1997-1999
b. 11, f. 145-146	Robin Ficklin-Alred	1998-1999
b. 11, f. 147-148	Kimberleigh Buchanan	1999-2001
b. 11, f. 149	Eugenia Freiburger	2001
b. 11, f. 150	Correspondence	undated

### Series IV: Meetings, 1972-2003

b. 13, f. 152 Convention programs 1981-19   b. 13, f. 153 Convention programs 1992-20   b. 13, f. 154 Conference Handbook 1987, 19   b. 13, f. 155 Conference Handbook 1987, 19	003
b. 13, f. 154 Conference Handbook 1987, 19	
b. 13, f. 155 Conference Handbook 1987, 19	990
	990, 1992
b. 13, f. 156 Convention, Toronto, "The Open Society: Shaping Religion and Values" 1973	
b. 13, f. 157 Eastern Regional Conference, Atlantic City, "Models of Teaching For Religious 1974 Faith"	
b. 13, f. 158 75th Anniversary Conference, Chicago, "This We Can Believe: A Pluralistic Vision" 1978	
b. 13, f. 159 Convention, Toronto, "Tomorrow's Child Today" 1979	
b. 13, f. 160 Conference, New York University, "Religious Education and Public Policy" 1981	
b. 13, f. 161-162 Conference, Anaheim, California, "Pursuing Justice and Peace: Challenge to 1983 Religious Educators"	
b. 13, f. 163-164 Fall Conference, Washington, DC, "Spirituality and Religious Education" 1986	
b. 13, f. 165-166 Conference, Toronto, "How Shall We Sing the Lord's Song in a Strange Land? 1987 Faithful Educating in a Pluralistic Culture"	
b. 14, f. 167-168 Conference, Boulder, Colorado, "The Living Earth: Home of God and All God's 1990 People"	
Conference, Indianapolis, "Adult Learners: Making Critical Connections"	
b. 14, f. 169 General 1992	
b. 14, f. 170-171 Planning 1992	
b. 14, f. 172 Adult Education Bibliography 1992	
b. 14, f. 173 Resource on Persons with Disabilities 1992	
b. 14, f. 174 Notebook 1992	
Conference, Chicago, "Nurturing Learning Communities; Building Learning Linkages"	
b. 15, f. 175-177 General 1994	
b. 15, f. 178 Bibliography 1994	
Conference, New Orleans, "Congregation as Educator"	
b. 15, f. 179-180 General 1996	
b. 15, f. 181 Exhibits 1996	

Conference, Orlando, Florida, "Spiritual Meaning and Religious Commitment"

Conference, Orlando, Florida, "Spiritual Meaning and Religious C [...] (continued)

b. 15, f. 182-183	General	1998
b. 15, f. 184-185	Paul Limbert, correspondence	1998
b. 16, f. 186-187	Conference, Atlanta, Georgia, "Learning to See God in the Peoples of God"	2000
b. 16, f. 188-191	100th Anniversary Conference, Chicago, "Embracing the Past, Envisioning the Future: Religious Education in an Age of Transition"	2003
b. 16, f. 192	100th Anniversary Conference, Proceedings	2003
b. 17, f. 193-194	Lilly Endowment Grant, "Educational Conferences on Religious Differences"	n.d.
	Tri-Lateral Conference, Houston, Texas, "The Use of the Sacred Texts in Forming the Faith of the Community"	
b. 17, f. 195	General	1991
b. 17, f. 196	Papers	1991
b. 17, f. 197-198	Tri-Lateral Conference, Claremont and Los Angeles, CA, "E Pluribus Unum: Religious Pluralism and the Common Good"	1992
b. 17, f. 199-200	Tri-Lateral Conference, Stony Point, NY, "Multifaith Dialogue in a Multicultural Society"	1993
	Tri-Lateral Conference, Oklahoma City, "Archetypes and Prototypes: Role Models in Islam, Judaism and Christianity"	
b. 18, f. 201	General	1993
b. 18, f. 202	Papers	1993
b. 18, f. 203	Tri-Lateral Conference, Windsor, Ontario, "Religious Wisdom on Contemporary Issues: Muslim, Christian and Jewish Perspectives"	1994
b. 18, f. 204	Tri-Lateral Conference, Pittsburgh, PA, "Making a Difference: An Interfaith Conference on Moral Education"	1994
b. 18, f. 205	Tri-Lateral Conference, Villanova, PA, "Particularity and Pluralism: Educating for Religious Identity and the Common Good"	1994
	Tri-Lateral Conference, Stony Point, NY, "Teach a Woman, Teach a People"	
b. 18, f. 206	General	1994
b. 18, f. 207	Resources	1994
b. 18, f. 208	Papers	1994

# Series V: Regional Work, 1988-1989, undated

b. 19, f. 209	Chapters, Metropolitan and Regional	undated
b. 19, f. 210	Chapters, Listings	undated
b. 19, f. 211	Regional Chapter. Houston, Texas	undated
b. 19, f. 212	Chapter Symposium, Houston, Texas, "Religious Education: Survival in a Secular Society"	1989
b. 19, f. 213	Symposium, Spertus College, Chicago, "Religion at Risk"	1988

# Series VI: Publications, 1971-2003, undated

b. <b>19</b> , f. 214	75th Anniversary of the Religious Education Association	1978
b. 19, f. 214	John Westerhoff, <i>Who Are We? The Quest for a Religious Education</i> . Birmingham, AL: Religious Education Press	1978
b. <b>19</b> , f. 214	Stephen A. Schmidt, <i>A History of the Religious Education Association</i> . Birmingham, AL: Religious Education Press	1983
b. <b>19</b> , f. 214	Boardman Kathan, editor. "Pioneers of Religious Education in the 20th Century," Religious Education, Special Edition	1978 September- October
b. 19, f. 215	100th Anniversary of the Religious Education Association	2003
b. 20, f. 216	Journal, Religious Education	undated
b. 20, f. 217	John L. Elias <i>, Religious Education in Adulthood</i> . New Haven, CT: Religious Education Association	1992
b. 20, f. 218	Journal Issue, "Religious Traditions in Conversation"	undated
b. 20, f. 219	Advertising in the journal, Religious Education	undated
b. 20, f. 220-221	Reprint permissions	undated
b. 20, f. 222	Membership Directory	1991, 1993
b. 20, f. 223	Cassette tapes	undated
b. 20, f. 224	Chronicle Guidance Publications, "Religious Education Directors"	undated
b. 20, f. 225	REA Website	undated
b. 20, f. 226	Tri-Lateral Conferences, plans for publication	undated
b. 20, f. 227	Press releases	undated
	Newsletters	
b. 20, f. 228	R.E.A. Directors	1991-1992
b. 21, f. 229	The Religious Educator	1971-1973
b. 21, f. 230	The Religious Educator, REACH	1974-1976
b. 21, f. 231	REACH	1977-1980
b. 21, f. 232-233	REACH	1981-1986
b. 22, f. 234-238	REACH	1987-2003

### Series VII: Research, 1979-1989

#### Faith Development in the Adult Life Cycle

b. 23, f. 239	Faith Development in the Adult Life Cycle Project	1979-1987
b. 23, f. 240	Symposium, St. Paul, Minnesota	1981
b. 23, f. 241	Symposium, Papers	1981
b. 23, f. 242	Symposium, Hypotheses	1981
b. 23, f. 243	Symposium, Book; Kenneth Stokes, editor. <i>Faith Development in the Adult Life Cycle</i> . New York, NY: W.H. Sadlier Co.	1982
b. 23, f. 244	Pretest, Gallup Organization	1982
b. 23, f. 245-246	Steering Committee	1982-1985
b. 23, f. 247	Regional Conferences	1985-1986
b. 24, f. 248	Module 1; "Faith Development and Your Ministry," Princeton Religion Research Center	1985
b. 24, f. 249	Module 2	1985
b. 24, f. 250	Module 2 Revised	1985
b. 24, f. 251	Steering Committee	1986-1987
b. 24, f. 252	Final Report	1987
b. 24, f. 253	Seminar-at-Sea	1988
b. 24, f. 254	Book: Kenneth Stokes, <i>Faith is a Verb: Dynamics of Adult Faith Development</i> . Mystic, CT: Twenty-Third Publications	1989
b. 24, f. 255	Adult Faith Resources	undated
b. 24, f. 256	Annual Review of Research	undated
b. 24, f. 257	Bibliographies	undated

### Series VIII: Financial and Promotional Records, 1981-2001

b. 25, f. 258-259	Annual Financial Reports	1983-1993
b. 25, f. 260	Financial Reports	1995-1999
b. 25, f. 261-266	IRS Return, 990, 990-T	1983-1990
b. 25, f. 267	Staff payroll, New Haven, CT	1981-1997
b. 26, f. 268-270	Financial reports	1982-2001
b. 26, f. 271	REA Treasurer	undated
b. 26, f. 272	Bank accounts	undated
b. 26, f. 273	Wornom Retirement Housing Reserve Fund	undated
b. 26, f. 274	Promotional records	1986-1987
b. 26, f. 275	Promotional brochures	undated
b. 26, f. 276	Pew Trust	undated
b. 26, f. 277	Lilly Endowment	undated
b. 26, f. 278	Theological Education by Extension	undated
b. 26, f. 279	Endowment Fund	undated
b. 26, f. 280	Hagedorn Fund	undated
b. 26, f. 281	University Microfilms	undated
b. 26, f. 282	Religious Education Press	undated
b. 26, f. 283	Martin Quigley	undated

# Series IX: Memberships, 2001

b. 27, f. 284 Membership lists (by country, zip code, alphabetical by last name) 2001

# Series X: Photographs, 1970-2000, undated

b. 27, f. 285	A-B-C Rabbi Hanan Alexander, Joyce Bailey, Fr. Howard Basler, Jerry Benjamin, Peter Berger, Jerome Berryman, Myron Bloy, Rabbi Eugene Borowitz, Mary Boys, Milo Brekke, John Bremer, Rabbi Balfour Brickner, Fr. Donald Campion, Ruth Shonle Cavan, Joanne Chafe, Rabbi Burton Cohen, Harvey Cox, Ronald Cram, Clarisse Croteau-Chonko, Iris Cully	undated
b. 27, f. 286	D-E-F Sr. Dorothy Davis, Fr. Roger Desmarais, Fr. Robert Drinan, Gloria Durka, Alexander Dushkin, Craig Dykstra, Findley Edge, David Elkind, Donald Emler, Emil Fackenheim, Sophia Lyon Fahs, Roy Fairchild, Trenton Ferro, J. Blaine Fister, Fr. Edward Flannery, Charles Foster, Fr. Matthew Fox, Dorothy Jean Furnish	undated
b. 27, f. 287	G-H-I Sr. Ann Ida Gannon, Dolores Gerken, Rabbi Arthur Gilbert, Ronald Goldman, Roberta Goodman, Eli Grad, Fr. Andrew Greeley, Rabbi Irving Greenberg, Rabbi Simon Greenberg, Thomas Groome, Howard Ham, Maria Harris, Warren Hartman, Daniel Heischman, Carter Heyward, Fr. Johannes Hofinger	undated
b. 27, f. 288	J-K-L Jesse Jackson, Belva Brown Jordan, Sr. Teresita Kambeitz, Rabbi Mordecai Kaplan, Boardman Kathan, Will Kennedy, Malcolm Knowles, Lawrence Kohlberg, Fr. C. Albert Koob, Paul Lederach, James Michael Lee, Ernest Ligon, Robert Lynn	undated
b. 27, f. 289	M-N-O Fr. Berard Marthaler, Martin Marty, Paul Maves, Fr. Alfred McBride, Fr. Richard McBrien, Fr. John McCall, Neil McCluskey, with Richard U. Smith, Bishop William McManus, Charles Melchert, Robert Michaelsen, Randolph C. Miller, with Herman Wornom, et al, Randolph C. Miller, with Glenn Garbutt, Allen Moore, Gabriel Moran, Ernest Nedder, C. Ellis Nelson, Roberta Nelson, Richard Neuhaus, David Ng and Greer Anne Ng, Michael Novak, Robert O'Gorman, Karen O'Neal, Harry Orlinsky	undated
b. 27, f. 290	P-Q-R-S Marion Pardy, Rabbi W. Gunther Plaut, Ira Progoff, Robert Raikes, Larry Randen, Lawrence Richards, Herbert Richardson, Donald Russo, Barbara Ryan, Barbara Ryan with Barbara MacCameron, Br. Leo Ryan, Dorothy Savage, Dorothy Savage with Boardman Kathan and David Gray, Philip Scharper, Alvin Schiff, Peter Schillaci, Stephen Schmidt, Jack Seymour, Rabbi Morris Sherer, Rabbi Byron Sherwin, Charles Silverman, Sidney Simon, Nelle Slater, Catherine Smith, Richard U. Smith, Raymond Smolover, Eliot Spack, Rabbi Jack Spiro, David Stanley, Robert Steffer, Kenneth Stokes, Olivia Pearl Stokes, Leon Sullivan, Rabbi Daniel Syme	undated
b. 27, f. 291	T-U-V-W-X-Y-Z Mary Lee Talbot with Barbara Withers, Rabbi Marc Tanenbaum, Fr. William Tobin, Margaret Tyree, Paul Vieth, Anton Vrame, Sr. Annette Walters, Sr. Ann Patrick Ware, Cynthia Wedel, Luther Weigle, John Westerhoff with Greer Ann Ng, Elisa Wheeler, Elie Wiesel, David Wilkerson, Howard Williams, Anne Wimberly with Martin Marty, Herman Wornom, Elisabeth Watson, et al.	undated
b. 27, f. 292	REA Convention, Chicago	1972
b. 27, f. 293	REA Convention, Toronto	1973
b. 27, f. 294	REA Convention, Philadelphia	1975

b. 27, f. 295	REA Convention, St. Louis	1977
b. 27, f. 296	75th Anniversary Conference, Chicago	1978
b. 27, f. 297	REA Convention, Toronto	1979
b. 27, f. 298	Miscellaneous	1970-1980s
b. 28, f. 299	Installation of Boardman Kathan as General Secretary	1970
b. 28, f. 300	REA Staff, Officers, Board members	1970-1971
b. 28, f. 301	65th and 70th Anniversary of the Journal, Religious Education	1971
b. 28, f. 302	Writers Conference and Yale-Hartford-Berkeley Consultation	1973, 1978
b. 28, f. 303	Testimonial Dinner for Boardman Kathan, NYC	1983
b. 28, f. 304	REA Board of Directors	1983
b. 28, f. 305	REA Staff and Editorial Staff	1985
b. 28, f. 306	REA Board of Directors (Spring meeting)	1985
b. 28, f. 307	REA Board of Directors	1987
b. 28, f. 308	Symposium, Spertus College, Chicago	1988
b. 28, f. 309	Conference, Boulder, Colorado	1990
b. 28, f. 310	REA Board of Directors	1991
b. 28, f. 311	REA Board of Directors and Annual Meeting	1991
b. 28, f. 312	Conference, Indianapolis	1992
b. 28, f. 313	Tri-Lateral Conference, Claremont and Los Angeles	1992
b. 28, f. 314	Tri-Lateral Conference, Oklahoma City	1993
b. 28, f. 315	Parliament of the World's Religions	1993
b. 28, f. 316	Tri-Lateral Conference, Stony Point, NY	1993
b. 28, f. 317	REA Conference, Chicago, Illinois	1994
b. 28, f. 318	REA Board of Directors	1997
b. 28, f. 319	New REA Office, Columbia Theological Seminary, Decatur, GA	1997-1998
b. 28, f. 320	REA Conference, Orlando, Florida	1998
b. 28, f. 321	REA Annual Meeting at Association of Professors and Researchers in Religious Education (APRRE) Meeting, Toronto, Ontario	1999
b. 28, f. 322	REA Conference, Atlanta, Georgia	2000
b. 28, f. 323	REA Exhibits	undated

### Selected Search Terms

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

### Subjects

Educators Religious education Universities and colleges -- Religion

### Names

Artman, Joseph Manson, 1879-Coe, George Albert, 1862-1951 Cope, Henry Frederick, 1870-1923 Dewey, John, 1859-1952 Elliott, Harrison S. (Harrison Sacket), 1882-1951 Harper, William Rainey, 1856-1906 Kathan, Boardman W. Miller, Randolph Crump, 1910-2002 Sanders, Frank Knight, 1861-1933 Smith, Richard Upsher Stokes, Kenneth Strommen, Merton P. Wornom, Herman E., 1902-1992

### **Corporate Bodies**

American Institute of Sacred Literature Association of Professors and Researchers in Religious Education National Council on Religion and Public Education (U.S.) Religious Education Association